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                Commerce St Chillers 6 & 7 Replacement Project  

               

                 SAWS Job No. 14-7503 

SAWS Solicitation No. B-14-058-MR 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

September 15, 2014 

 

To Bidder of Record: 

 

This addendum, applicable to work referenced above, is an amendment to the bidding documents and 

as such will be a part of and included in the Contract Documents. Acknowledge receipt of this 

addendum by entering the addendum number and issue date in the space provided in submitted copies 

of the proposal. Failure to do so may subject Bidder to disqualification. 

 

This addendum includes responses to questions, as well as revisions to the RFQ. 

 

A copy of the Pre-Proposal Meeting Notes and Sign-In sheets are included in this addendum. 

 

Item 1:  QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS: 

 

1. The reason I am contacting you today is to find out what type of refrigerant, and how much is 

in each of the chillers being replaced in the project? 

Response:  Refrigerant is R-123.  There is approximately 5,000 pounds between the two 

chillers.   

2. Will SAWS be selling this refrigerant off separately, or does the wining contractor take this 

material as part of their work?   

Response:  The successful contractor shall be responsible for the legal evacuation and removal 

or salvage of the refrigerant in Chillers 6 and 7.  The contractor shall also legally evacuate the 

existing R-123 refrigerant recovery tank in the vicinity of Chillers 6 and 7 and remove the 

recovery tank from the site.  (There will be approximately 5,000 pounds of R-123 to be 

removed from the site.) 

3. What is the job duration Substantial and Final Completion? 

Response:  See “Price Proposal Form”, page PP-2 in Project Specifications manual. 
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4. Is there a cost estimate? 

Response:  A detailed cost estimate is not provided.   

An estimate project cost can be found at the website for this project: 

http://www.saws.org/business_center/contractsol/Drill.cfm?id=1228&View=Yes 

5. Is there a pre-qual for the Controls Portion on this project? 

Response:  See Section 23 0923, page 5, paragraph 1.7, “Qualifications”.  System shall comply 

in all respects with Section 23 0923 – Industrial Control System. 

6. Will SAWS recover the refrigerant & oils from the existing de-commissioned Chillers before 

Demo, or are the Contractors supposed to take care of this? 

Response:  See Responses to 1. and 2. above. 

7. Do you have a recommended Roofer we can contact for Roof patching/sealing/flashing after 

installation of the Roof Top Unit? 

Response:  The roof is no longer under warranty.  SAWS has no recommended roofer. 

8. Do you know the thickness of the concrete roof deck? 

Response:  4” 

9. My apologies, but we have one more RFI.  There is no Piping Specification in Division 23.  

We really need this.  See attached TOC. 

Response:  See Item 2 below; Revisions to Contract Documents and Technical Specifications. 

 

END OF QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
 

 

 

http://www.saws.org/business_center/contractsol/Drill.cfm?id=1228&View=Yes
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Item 2: REVISIONS TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, DRAWING SHEETS AND 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

 

Bidding and Contract Documents: 

 

Supplementary Instructions to Respondents; C. Response Format; Project Safety & Quality Control 

(Page SIR 3) 

 

Item 1:  Add sub section “f.: Indicate how your FIRM’s proposal has reduced cost to SAWS by 

utilizing the value from salvage of the removed materials including but not limited to 

copper wiring, refrigerant, decommissioned chiller equipment.” 

 

Proposal Certification  (Page PC 1) 

 

Item 1:  Replace proposal certification with attached proposal certification.  

 

General Conditions, Paragraph 5.7 – Contractor’s Standard Commercial Insurance Specifications and 

Certificate of Liability Insurance Requirements  (Page GC-23) 

 

Item 1:  Add “Contractor shall also provide an Installation Floater.  This shall provide Physical 

Damage Insurance which insures SAWS and the City for damages to all Property 

Purchased for, or Assigned to, the Project commencing on the start date through 

completion. Policy limits shall be in an amount equal to the total contract cost contracted 

herewith. The policy form shall be an All Risk form and shall include coverage for both 

during transit and while stored at the work site.” 

 

Wage Decisions 

 

Item 1: Delete Wage Rates for Construction Types ‘Heavy and Highway”, “On-Shore Pipeline 

Construction” and “Heavy Tunnel”.  

 

Drawings and Technical Specifications: 

 

DRAWING SHEETS 

 

RE:  Drawing Sheet M1.1 – Mechanical Floor Plan – New Work 

 

Item 1:  Delete General Note #9. 

 

SPECIFICATION ITEMS 

 

RE:  Specification Section 23 2113 – Hydronic Piping 

 

Item 1:  Add attached specification section in its entirety.  
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RE:  Specification Section 23 2116 – Hydronic Piping Specialties:   

 

Item 1:  Add attached specification section in its entirety. 

  

RE: Specification Section 26 2419: 

Item 1:  On page 6, paragraph 2.4.B.1. – add the subparagraph: ‘e. Phase failure, phase reversal, 

undervoltage and overvoltage protection’. 

Item 2: On page 10, delete paragraph 2.7 in its entirety. 

Item 3: On page 10, delete paragraphs 2.8.A and 2.8.C. 

Item 5: On page 11, delete paragraphs 2.8.D.1, 2.8.D.2 and 2.8.D.3. 

Item 6: On page 11, revise paragraph 2.10.A. to read ‘Indoor Enclosures: Freestanding steel 

cabinets...NEMA 250, Type 1 gasketed with drip shield,’ 

Item 7: On page 12, delete paragraph 2.11.B. 

 

END OF REVISIONS TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND TECHNICAL 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 

This Addendum, including this page, is nineteen (19) pages in its entirety. 

The remainder of the bid documents remained unchanged. 
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Meeting Notes:  Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting 

1San Antonio Water System  
Commerce St. Chillers 6 & 7 Replacement 

SAWS Job No. 14-7503  SAWS Solicitation No.: B-14-058-MR 

Date: September 9, 2014, 9:00 a.m. 

Location: SAWS, Heating and Cooling Building, 900 E. Commerce St., S.A., Tx. 78205 

I. Project Discussion 

a. Request that attendees sign the Attendance Sheet 

 

b. Introductions  

Ismael Rosales, P.E., PRT Engineering, SAWS,  

Marc Ripley, Contract Administrator, SAWS,  

Mark Villarreal, Chilled Water Plant Manager, SAWS 

Carl Bain, P.E., Design Engineer, Bain Medina Bain 

Steve Huck, P.E., Design Engineer, Alderson Inc. 

Lon Culbertson, P.E., Design Engineer, Alderson Inc. 

Julian Perales, Inspector, SAWS 

Marisa Palmer, P.E., PRT Engineering, SAWS 

 

c. Nothing discussed during the pre-proposal meeting conference changes anything in 
the Bidding/Contract documents. Bidder is to strictly bid the written documents. Any 
changes to these Contract documents will be issued by written addendum. The 
meeting minutes will be for information purposes only. 

d. Project Description: 

This project consists of the following:  

1.  Replacement of Chillers 6 & 7 and associated medium voltage (4160 Volt) remote 

starters with two new chillers incorporating remote variable frequency drives.  

2.  Replacement of variable speed drives serving Glycol-Chilled Water Pumps 16, 17 and 18 

and installation of new variable speed drives for same pumps.  

3.  Replacement of starter for Glycol-Chilled Water Pump 19 and installation of new starter 

for same pump.  

4.  Installation of cooling-only packaged rooftop unit to serve existing Electrical Room.  
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Meeting Notes:  Mandatory Pre-Proposal Meeting 

5.  Replacement of Automated Logic controls system serving Chillers 6 and 7 and associated 

glycol-chilled water pumps, condenser water pumps, district-cooling chilled water 

pumps, associated control valves, cooling tower fan, and other ancillary pieces of 

equipment with programmable logic controllers (PLC’s) and system hardware as 

specified.  

6.  Electrical system modifications to accommodate reconnection of replaced equipment to 

include both medium voltage (4160 Volt) and low voltage (480 and 120 volt).  

7.  Note: Two plate and frame heat exchangers isolate the chilled water/ice generating 
Chillers 6 and 7 from the district chilled water cooling loop. This will allow Chillers 6 and 7 
and associated glycol-chilled water pumps and Automated Logic controls to be shut 
down without affecting the remaining plant. The Contractor shall schedule such 
shutdown so as to coordinate sufficient time for equipment demolition prior to arrival of 
the new equipment. All work described in the documents shall transpire during one 
shutdown period. The duration of the shutdown shall be coordinated between all trades 
to minimize the outage period to the greatest extent possible. 
 

e. Project Permitting:   Trade permits will be required. Bid proposal includes an allowance 
for permits. 

f. Safety Requirements 

Contractor shall comply with all requirements in the contract documents, including, 

but not limited to:  

i. General Conditions, 5.3  CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES, item 2; 

ii. General Conditions, 5.28  SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS; 

g. Project Schedule 
i. Project Duration 240 Calendar Days  

ii. Sequence of Construction, Specification Section 01 1000.1.5 

h. Underground Utilities 

i. Contractor shall comply with all requirements in the contract documents, 

including, but not limited to:  

ii. General Conditions, 5.16  PUBLIC UTILITIES; 

i. Contract Documents 
(Mark Ripley) 

j. Certified Payroll Requirements 
(Sandra Rios) 

II. Questions 
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Sign-In Sheet 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 

COMMERCE ST. CHILLERS 6 & 7 REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 1 Job# 14-7503 

Solicitation No.: B-14-058-MR 

9/9/14 9 :00AM 

Print Name I Company Address Phone Fax E-mail Contractor Type 

Der-e I<: g,Q'vJI'""\. c"- rri.or 
11...-t. 2.. 5 wd-,....N-,. (Z.., _ .J:14t-r r)..Gnr 1.!., G...-,.,__,..._ t1 0 General Contractor 

L)t-2..->f-
S" .... A""+"'"' ~J TJ<7 8Z-4'1 1 J I) 

(,~//f,,, 1.114-c. C" ~ 0 Sub-Contractor 

Mupplier 

I 34 {, p -t:/ f>v~ M)::.../ z:._.t?) k tt 9 - t'.,g;fe.r. A . S ,-,wJ./- 0 General Contractor 

~~ ~~-:71 ~\ #-?!& 
~&3c/ 

0 ( 0 Sub-Contractor 

~..Q_ Ty 7'//P/7 
~ ~c.-- . ~{) ..-. ~lier 

2 

l8ct8o '((~ iMb RD 9-.lO- lttt4- ltCf4-8fJ78 f'1tKL-- LtM@ 0 General Contractor 

frtlK£ f>A eJfo ftl< LtMOSU- 1/,A, ~ 78B-s-~ q~ ll f;UJEJ&L~ ~~~~ ~b-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
3 

s-~ trtt.AI ~5 IP?$6 /!dtJ!PdLI, "'Z f/J 66?-211 J 
JtJ.J<t- 4:Ju -i.Stt;be-1 (., 0 General Contractor 

tt JlltJ&t ~~lfttJ 1r/R-(~ 
Wf.f- ~-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
,. ' ' 

4 

(,J,.)o c;..... .. 1"\ c}",. (Jk.-( 
?.10- '7i3- &'P-f lshe,v "'@ brc.~\-~~c.. 

I ~neral Contractor 

5c6{+ \-\e..o 1'\ ~('~"cl..t-
S e '-'v \.l.1 ·~ 

0 Sub-Contractor ......_ 
0 Supplier 

5 

I /.lbZ5 ~~ rt:wf'. lib- 5f3 -s-o7Ctl ~\5:ta)"e~~@, 0 General Contractor 

6ef-/ez.rz., IX "S-eA,.rt:'T"- ~ub-Contractor 

~~~M'<'~~~v ~Y-f\N"Pr ~1-I:J9]-~M 0 Supplier . 6 

I '17~ ,&'Ill 1.3~ 7 13F'od£A!I"161-b@ 
0 General Contractor 

&~"' ~~j2.~1£U> =s-s~~'e 
&~ T>t /f'(,/0 .5/Z·.,ZI/.3· ~ 'oo 'S S£i,edMICI • em. ~ub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
7 

~/N/Q;a,re~ 
I !!of~&(" .:?~I;-C j'"Tif .5' ,L S' /~ Jfl ~/2 J~tf A, f /'I'd" m ec_), fl ~eral Contractor 

/tteP'IJt~-,dt'a./ he. ,#JtJ f, .1 /X }?f ftJ I. flft ~'lr"t 
s-6 ~~11~/,. /le f 0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
8 

9 

Kte_ M tr~-1/\\Je~ 
fZtriN ~o~ "3/4 ~ 5 E. LtYo~ y I 0 )/lr ~5'2- PM A' It 1' nl ~ 2.--- @_, 0 General Contractor 

~e"~ 
!'14) ro. '"' ~()r-r ~"'L Ct>Y"" 

tlit Sub-Contractor 

SPr ,1x 7~21.1. (l( Supplier 

9/912014 
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Sign-In Sheet 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 

COMMERCE ST. CHILLERS 6 & 7 REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT I Job# 14-7503 
Solicitation No.: B-14-058-MR 

9/9/14 9:00AM 

Print Name I Company Address Phone Fax E-mail Contractor Type 

m ; 1c ~ Pua<r 
J.-10 · J..IO · 1'11 Fur. -s -r 0 D General Contractor 

Dt f\tJ~"l ~O)")Cott)j()(( PAytb J~~Cl-(g tJ.O C?'-i(, ·Jif>'l i D t..~t.JJ.-r tG "'I· (,t)M_ 

D Sub-Contractor 

.D Supplier 

~\f)rlcs 
(oy tr; -r;e I Cou-~ :i1o- 9bo -~140Cl ~~~~ D General Contractor 

ffiE1) SLo9--~ rf\€-"\\\::: . c.~ D Sub-Contractor 

~t.oOI 
D Supplier 

2 

{:// (/ 1/t i [dv/1)-tr !Jt ().., )..((~ - ~L6 -1!" 1- +o», fJJu J tV 
D General Contractor 

h!)J /£vl( ltv?-
D Sub-Contractor 

IJII.fc u.JJ L-, 
'3so~ tt9rC? Jv1~i /k, Col1 D Supplier 

3 

lAS . .S~s- \ 1-fl s~c:.Jcz.. ~ ~~D~ )/'y 
Jv""'~'/ 

~ID) 3)) 0/S&h ;:l'o,.,.......,J @. D General Contractor 

~J?~ CIS"] YrV\~ : ). c..~l)yo, D Sub-Contractor 

CJ/.5o--. . SA. --~"X l<g '- 'i D Supplier 
4 

~~~ '-S"'-J~ uS> ~~t_to \A'1 ':><liP-\~ m ~"v :3'\\- ;<_ \0 :,"3'3 \f'I\P\~'N'\~>{;2, 'SA'YX D General Contractor 

I Cc."l5d- C>\S\ • \VQ. • <..l>VV\ 
D Sub-Contractor 

5A- "\'l<.. \ £02.\ l\ D Supplier 
5 

Sobb'j fioh1ShtAJ).._ /!#JWW ~~z,j (ott-J~t- 1/!w:J 2/0-5'77 Z(O bobbj f-@ bf--ArJJ-1- D General Contractor 

)c/te;---/z.-1 1'< (,t'Z-0 c:;tfr, //,'ftf Cotnp1VJff5, C tJIV? 
D Sub-Contractor 

I 
D Supplier 

6 

1.}~\) \~r 
I Qohle-s 1 ll..( 1]?/l?dHo~ fl IJ!o · srJ,- ~7 il ~ kJ J o.U ;e. ~rJkJ1. h f D General Contractor 

\) ~· l\0\VV€,0\' ) ftr ic;n 1 '( 100~ 
S"' &> - 1b(f ) { 

itJ..8{,b·Contractor 

0 Supplier 

4!Ec-hl )J,~jV);~ ~J £o/dcsfll C ?,T3l {)tJ/tOA (iJ 2/o 5'(;. 11o abrvfrlj~r, ~f4tk~t ~neral Contractor 

I ~r;6vi'"~ 7RJZ'f 1J'D7 51/l(J, 1/ 
ub-Contractor 

.~e.r 0 Supplier 
,. 

7 

8 

9 

~k ki7ro~fru ~A)~10 
6;1<80 q I. ~If-/0 ~ pl(O t?--1((3 ~:r 80 11-"" Me. D General Contractor 

-~ w tV tl /j 780JCe ~~~ d;~~q V ,v A--M I Lr~~y D Sub-Contractor 

~~~:5~ D Supplier 
lL~fl: ~[e>~ 

7 I r ( 

9/9/2014 
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Sign-In Sheet 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 

COMMERCE ST. CHILLERS 6 & 7 REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT I Job# 14-7503 

Solicitation No.: B-14-058-MR 
9/9/14 9:00AM 

Print Name Company Address Phone Fax E-mail Contractor Type 

I ~l-l6 '71fo~-t41 04'/~j e,, ... , ""f./0 /Jfie.k.e/ ...... ~~,..,~y',._ 0 General Contractor 

A'"J,.fe! &"r~Jf-4 ?' c..X - \jo ttk >t.,ih 'LI' ,~41.1-t11J.I7 SVI-1o<;jl 1/1'·P19(J 7 6 JC..,.,eo,_ 0 Sub-Contractor 

~pplier 

l~A7J) AUJA,A".t Nl~. t441 ~ - w v0 ~~k ld 1).0 J.,-{0 '?,lt>S @- ~eneral Contractor 

l)A~ ~~~qoc) 04'b 1377 AcGU.f.t\ p.i..ON \,"'6. (pM 0 Sub-Contractor 

~A- T)G ?B/20 0 Supplier 
2 

Cf"'07 
I 

fl1<cul/ovf~ l.JO /'?qnd tef1.} dh CJ 0 General Contractor 

f'11J{ ;!Jeaser-, JixrAs cL!Iw fyJ/;;u L/0 

1eXC1J c.},,./lt'/r.fyJ(efllf. ~ 0 Sub-Contractor 

J;:J 1X 7~L}b 650 99 7 z.. bJo 9173 'o Supplier 
3 

4a-~ E~~~,vf~IJ i;Z Mec.t-~,AN,~{ I.A.c..... CA.~' bo t.f ()to ~ h6H~~.v-fcrlJ e ~ntractor 
73~~ '2..l 0 

~;; l -~~IS 
0 Sub-Contractor 

5A- --qc 1 r.:z.J 4> Slt-~SI7 e 'Z.. Me c...H.. CcJ11-t 0 Supplier 
4 

Rrwl/f dpJ 5 32.- A/oru7-l /JJr<£- l.Jo L/u I'/J7..J::Jy htrrJ t_e.r~ 
kfGeneral Contractor 

Rc_-( 
0 Sub-Contractor 

l:Jo S~tl. Tk 78~ '-/<to 37o o W 0-3700 /l..eC /ND· u:>rJ 0 Supplier 
5 

ttZ'k( f 'J-]jP tilfV.J/t'l1.c. r 1 ')(b J(e? 
0 General Contractor 

~ontractor 

fl{/u no ..f?ht>T 1' &:TTer f!J. T'J J())J7 )OJ Cff}Lf 731/trc, J J0h6T1 f2kzUaiJJI a7 ~ ~u~ 6 

7 

/ 

t I P.lf IC.Lu..., .J? ,t;"N 
Z..to 2-to 0 General Contractor 

R:sl5a-f P" .,1 «sub-Contractor 

l7l ,1} c u.lf';..& ~ w I ~.,_,..I s.-,J /) -~"""'0 :l~ooo 
f}~y -"7 "r' 61 8L~-t...S7'7 r- r 1 o rd OJ.,& ,..,w, ~St 0 Supplier ·--f-tD. IJ w 'ro ~ r <5 (.). ' :J '1'1- 5p,. 1 'flf~uLfqy Cd. ..- f@ G '/FJ vl'-4 t 0 General Contractor 

RfJVv'f'J. f<oc.{l 1 T 'I '}'?:JJ ., fie G""Sub-Contractor 

Ctt.. )'I Vovrv L~ cv~ten. ~ '!'i <,.. fi) 0 Supplier 
8 

I I I 
~() . \3o~ 16~9 51~ ... ~44- pl;l- d-1+- 1\YilOl'l Q Ctj ~~ 

0 General Contractor 
I 

1) ·,\\()(\ v e"' t\V\'v\1\ JrCo . ~~-- ~~ ~tt< , ~b~() 11~; 6 494-
B"Sub-Contractor 

\OV.,.~~ 0 Supplier 
9 

v 1 t 
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\)~d s~-Qpl. \Jtcl-b~,~ ~0\ ?~i-.!S\- r-..~)~~~ cla\'\ds~ 0 General Contractor 

~ub-Contractor 

I v,~ ,-)<.. ~771 @ V\ ~'u\K.R. <l:t 
f\\~ ~Supplier 

" 21 

I t~~~ 1'~ ~- ~ltJ -11 ?--- ~' t<Lctlcl4aY 0 General Contractor 

A-Rth!AR (4Ltc s -A-f 1 ~ ;}-1 d- te ~~~ IK\5. c.ah!, 
0 Sub-Contractor 

t? 'YN.J'1 ~~ 0 Supplier 
22 

r-~1\'[l. tz., KJc \c; r ~ \q lif ~ :J-W ~ 7 ?J..- -~/((£del ;·,G) 0 General Contractor 

f( ~j-~ ~ f'b{ 
0 Sub-Contractor 

CJc4/7<f~l~ :tMt? I c...&IY{ 
0 Supplier 

23 

~ft ~4k~ ., 8;, s ~"" 61~ 2? '1:) N. ) f /1'1-.r•j':J ~.1.1o)7Jr- ~~~6)~k 
0 General Contractor 

¢ub-Contractor 

>A-r ?i)tz.. ~~-, 61~,.~ 0 Supplier 
24 

$"Je J//; /ju c)t. 
A t,J.?Ele~P;{)J 77 PP l'Jil-.1 t~V~Jf 2/.t> ~)4 7)/L/CJ< @__ 0 General Contractor 

A~;r,, !NG :7 .,4 /x 78Z29 j/1 t? AL-~eL~,dJJ -/iVc.. 0 Sub-Contractor 

~.X T "Z-2- ?on 
0 Supplier 

25 

f\\c1rl~Af~ )f)tu) -z_ _&J tJ L)) }11;-q 23~ VYJw J I1J/1r .)1~ 
0 General Contractor 

~?--sub-Contractor 
~'CJ/ 35"'75 

(: 

<2 .)~;on. ~f)plier 
26 

Lon J& ' AJJer~ £-k 7700 ~{"I /1 C) Z/0, t. ~ }.,. - '-' e:::J 0 General Contractor 

eli r-1-sof"\ I .s.ll h ~-I() Te y:q5 

~" ~~ ~~-'"3:1 

/16~CI~ S bl'l . 11/D qfc <"'rsal -it?C. eCDPJ 
0 Sub-Contractor 

I 7f:l229 ><13 
0 Supplier 

27 

Co-c \ B:Nf) YJcY\3 Sa-.""' ()o-- (J~v--.e. 0 General Contractor 

CDo..""' 
"('0.~\ n 0-..... ~~ro f>~~{o ..<!\~- 6""'~ .. (A1 rY') 

0 Sub-Contractor 

(6Ck,.\ '() ..l 1'.1 c lj :-<..-\ i'"Jc;&3 0 Supplier 
28 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
29 

0 General Contractor 

D Sub-Contractor 

D Supplier 
30 
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4 
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6 

7 

8 

9 
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Sign-In Sheet 

Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting 

COMMERCE ST_ CHILLERS 6 & 7 R EPLACEMENT 

PROJECT I Job# 14-7503 

Solicitation No.: B-14-058-MR 

9/9/14 9:00AM 

Address Phone 

cp;:; (lJf /o 'I 
'2)01' &)3 

I 0 t./OtJ tJo.:.1 Uv~ #IJY-~ u~'-P 

Fax E-mail Contractor Type 

11~ -Z'f'f(- jJord;JJ {JfiVAJ!-(Ar~~f 
0 General Contractor 
re,o}J ·C:r,!AA--

q!JJ 
~-Con ractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

" 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 

0 General Contractor 

0 Sub-Contractor 

0 Supplier 
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Rev. 03/14       

PC-1 

 

 PROPOSAL CERTIFICATION 

 

 

Accompanying this proposal is a Bid Bond or Certified or Cashier's Check payable to the Order of the San Antonio 

Water System for _____________________________________________________ dollars 

($_____________________), which amount represents five percent (5%) of the total bid price.  Said bond or check is to 

be returned to the bidder unless the proposal is accepted and the bidder fails to execute and file a contract within 10 

calendar days after the award of the Contract, in which case the check shall become the property of said San Antonio 

Water System, and shall be considered as payment for damages due to delay and other inconveniences suffered by said 

San Antonio Water System due to the failure of the bidder to execute the contract.  The San Antonio Water System 

reserves the right to reject any and all bids. 

 

It is anticipated that the Owner will act on this proposal within 60 calendar days after the bid opening.  Upon acceptance 

and award of the contract to the undersigned by the Owner, the undersigned shall execute standard San Antonio Water 

System Contract Documents and make Performance and Payment Bonds for the full amount of the contract within 10 

calendar days after the award of the Contract to secure proper compliance with the terms and provisions of the contract, 

to insure and guarantee the work until final completion and acceptance, and the guarantee period stipulated, and to 

guarantee payment of all lawful claims for labor performed and materials furnished in the fulfillment of the contract. 

 

It is anticipated that the Owner will provide written Authorization to Proceed within 30 days after the award of the 

Contract. 

 

The work called for in this Contract shall commence on the date indicated  in the SAWS written Authorization to 

Proceed  Under no circumstances shall the work commence prior to  the date provided for in the  SAWS issued, written 

Authorization to Proceed.  Work shall be completed in full within 240 consecutive calendar days. 

 

The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in the proposal have been carefully checked and are submitted as 

correct and final. 

 

The undersigned further acknowledges  compliance with “Wage and Labor Standard Provisions” of this contract and the 

use of the Blue Book rental rates for establishment of equipment rental rates whether owned or leased  during the course 

of this Contract.   

 

In completing the work contained in this proposal the undersigned certifies that bidder's practices and policies do not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex or national origin and that the bidder will affirmatively 

cooperate in the implementation of these policies and practices. 

 

 

                                                                 Signed:   ___________________________________________ 

 Company Representative 

 

                                                                                ___________________________________________ 

        Company Name 

 

                                                                                ___________________________________________ 

 

 

                                                                                ___________________________________________ 

             Address 

 

 

 

Please return bidder's check to:                               ___________________________________________ 

       Company Name 

 

                                                                                ___________________________________________ 

 

 

                                                                                ___________________________________________ 

             Address 
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SECTION 23 2113 
HYDRONIC PIPING 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions and Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 

1.2 SUMMARY 

A. Section includes pipe and fitting materials and joining methods for the following: 
1. Condenser-water piping. 
2. Glycol cooling-water piping. 
3. Safety valve outlet piping. 

1.3 ACTION SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data: For each type of the following: 
1. Condenser and glycol cooling-water pipe and fittings. 

1.4 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS 

A. Coordination Drawings: Piping layout, drawn to scale. 

B. Qualification Data: For Installer. 

C. Welding certificates. 

D. Field quality-control reports. 

1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Pipe Welding: Qualify procedures and operators according to ASME Boiler and 
Pressure Vessel Code: Section IX. 
1. Comply with ASME B31.9, "Building Services Piping," for materials, products, 

and installation. 
2. Certify that each welder has passed AWS qualification tests for welding 

processes involved and that certification is current. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Hydronic piping components and installation shall be capable of withstanding the 
following minimum working pressure and temperature unless otherwise indicated: 
1. Condenser-Water and Glycol Cooling-Water Piping: 150 psig at 150 deg F. 
2. Safety-Valve-Inlet and -Outlet Piping: Equal to the pressure of the piping system 

to which it is attached. 
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2.2 STEEL PIPE AND FITTINGS 

A. Steel Pipe: ASTM A 53/A 53M, black steel with plain ends; welded and seamless, 
Grade B, and wall thickness as indicated in "Piping Applications" Article. 

B. Cast-Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings: ASME B16.1, Classes 25, 125, and 250; 
raised ground face, and bolt holes spot faced as indicated in "Piping Applications" 
Article. 

2.3 JOINING MATERIALS 

A. Pipe-Flange Gasket Materials: Suitable for chemical and thermal conditions of piping 
system contents. 
1. ASME B16.21, nonmetallic, flat, asbestos free, 1/8-inch maximum thickness 

unless otherwise indicated. 
a. Narrow-Face Type: For raised-face, Class 250, cast-iron and steel flanges. 

B. Flange Bolts and Nuts: ASME B18.2.1, carbon steel, unless otherwise indicated. 

C. Welding Filler Metals: Comply with AWS D10.12M/D10.12 for welding materials 
appropriate for wall thickness and chemical analysis of steel pipe being welded. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 PIPING APPLICATIONS 

A. Condenser-water piping, aboveground, shall be the following: 
1. Schedule 80 steel pipe, wrought-steel fittings and wrought-cast or forged-steel 

flanges and flange fittings, and welded and flanged joints. 

B. Glycol cooling-water piping, aboveground, shall be the following: 
1. Schedule 40 steel pipe, wrought-steel fittings and wrought-cast or forged-steel 

flanges and flange fittings, and welded and flanged joints. 

C. Safety Valve Outlet Piping: Same materials and joining methods as for piping specified 
for the service in which safety valve is installed with metal-to-plastic transition fittings 
for plastic piping systems according to piping manufacturer's written instructions. 

3.2 PIPING INSTALLATIONS 

A. Drawing plans, schematics, and diagrams indicate general location and arrangement of 
piping systems. Install piping as indicated unless deviations to layout are approved on 
Coordination Drawings. 

B. Install piping indicated to be exposed and piping in equipment rooms and service areas 
at right angles or parallel to building walls. Diagonal runs are prohibited unless 
specifically indicated otherwise. 

C. Install fittings for changes in direction and branch connections. 

D. Install piping to allow application of insulation. 

E. Select system components with pressure rating equal to or greater than system 
operating pressure. 
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F. Install groups of pipes vertically parallel to each other, spaced to permit applying 
insulation and servicing of valves. 

G. Install drains, consisting of a tee fitting, NPS 3/4 ball valve, and hose thread fitting at 
low points in piping system mains and elsewhere as required for system drainage. 

H. Install piping at a uniform grade of 0.2 percent upward in direction of flow. 

I. Reduce pipe sizes using eccentric reducer fitting installed with level side up. 

J. Install flanges in piping, NPS 2-1/2 and larger, at final connections of equipment and 
elsewhere as indicated. 

K. Comply with requirements in Section 230553 "Identification for HVAC Piping and 
Equipment" for identifying piping. 

3.3 PIPE SUPPORTS 

A. Comply with requirements in Section 230529 "Hangers and Supports for HVAC Piping 
and Equipment" for hanger, support, and anchor devices. Comply with the following 
requirements for maximum spacing of supports. 

B. Install pipe supports for steel piping with the following maximum spacing  
1. NPS 3 and Larger: Maximum span, 12 feet. 

3.4 PIPE JOINT CONSTRUCTION 

A. Ream ends of pipes and tubes and remove burrs. Bevel plain ends of steel pipe. 

B. Remove scale, slag, dirt, and debris from inside and outside of pipe and fittings before 
assembly. 

C. Welded Joints:  
1. Construct joints according to AWS D10.12M/D10.12, using qualified processes 

and welding operators according to "Quality Assurance" Article. 

D. Flanged Joints:  
1. Select appropriate gasket material, size, type, and thickness for service 

application. Install gasket concentrically positioned. Use suitable lubricants on 
bolt threads. 

3.5 TERMINAL EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS 

A. Sizes for supply and return piping connections shall be the same as or larger than 
equipment connections. 

B. Install ports for pressure gages and thermometers at coil inlet and outlet connections. 
Comply with requirements in Section 230519 "Meters and Gages for HVAC Piping." 

3.6 CHEMICAL TREATMENT 

A. Coordinate and schedule chemical treatment of condenser water and glycol water 
piping systems with SAWS’ contracted chemical treatment provider.  
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3.7 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL 

A. Prepare hydronic piping according to ASME B31.9 and as follows: 
1. Leave joints, including welds, uninsulated and exposed for examination during 

test. 
2. Flush hydronic piping systems with clean water; then remove and clean or 

replace strainer screens. 
3. Isolate equipment from piping. If a valve is used to isolate equipment, its closure 

shall be capable of sealing against test pressure without damage to valve. Install 
blinds in flanged joints to isolate equipment. 

4. Install safety valve, set at a pressure no more than one-third higher than test 
pressure, to protect against damage by expanding liquid or other source of 
overpressure during test. 

B. Perform the following tests on hydronic piping: 
1. Use ambient temperature water as a testing medium. 
2. While filling system, use vents installed at high points of system to release air. 

Use drains installed at low points for complete draining of test liquid. 
3. Isolate expansion tanks and determine that hydronic system is full of water. 
4. Subject piping system to hydrostatic test pressure that is not less than 1.5 times 

the system's working pressure (100 psi for condenser water piping and 110 psi 
for glycol/chilled water piping). Test pressure shall not exceed maximum 
pressure for any vessel, pump, valve, or other component in system under test. 
Verify that stress due to pressure at bottom of vertical runs does not exceed 90 
percent of specified minimum yield strength or 1.7 times the "SE" value in 
Appendix A in ASME B31.9, "Building Services Piping." 

5. After hydrostatic test pressure has been applied for at least 10 minutes, examine 
piping, joints, and connections for leakage. Eliminate leaks by tightening, 
repairing, or replacing components and repeat hydrostatic test until there are no 
leaks. 

6. Prepare written report of testing in accordance with Section 01 4000. 

C. Perform the following before operating the system: 
1. Open manual valves fully. 
2. Inspect pumps for proper rotation. 
3. Set makeup pressure-reducing valves for required system pressure. 
4. Inspect air vents at high points of system and determine if all are installed and 

operating freely (automatic type), or bleed air completely (manual type). 
5. Inspect and set operating temperatures of chillers. 
6. Verify lubrication of motors and bearings. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 23 2116 
HYDRONIC PIPING SPECIALTIES 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions and Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section. 

1.2 SUMMARY 

A. Section includes special-duty valves and specialties for the following: 
1. Air-Control Devices 

a. Automatic Air Vents 

1.3 ACTION SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data: For each type of the following: 
1. Air-control devices. 

1.4 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS 

A. Operation and Maintenance Data:  
1. For air-control devices to include in emergency, operation, and maintenance 

manuals. 

PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

2.1 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

2.2 AIR-CONTROL DEVICES 

A. Automatic Air Vents: 
1. Manufacturers: Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by 

one of the following: 
a. AMTROL, Inc. 
b. Armstrong Pumps, Inc. 
c. Bell & Gossett; a Xylem brand. 
d. Nexus Valve, Inc. 
e. Taco, Inc. 

2. Body: Cast iron. 
3. Internal Parts: Nonferrous. 
4. Operator: Noncorrosive metal float. 
5. Inlet Connection: NPS 3/4. 
6. Discharge Connection: NPS 3/4. 
7. CWP Rating: 150 psig. 
8. Maximum Operating Temperature: 240 deg F. 

http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?ulid=7599
http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?uid=123456942385
http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?uid=123456942386
http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?uid=123456942387
http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?uid=123456942388
http://www.specagent.com/Lookup?uid=123456942389
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PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 HYDRONIC SPECIALTIES INSTALLATION 

A. Install automatic air vents at high points of system piping in mechanical equipment 
rooms only. Extend air vent discharge to nearest floor drain, full size of air vent outlet. 

END OF SECTION 
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